RFP 09-05 Questions
1.  Regarding the minimum requirements (pg 9, item 4)-it sounds like you need an IT professional on site during all business hours…is that a correct assumption? 
Answer: Section IV, Subsection #4, is focused on experience and ability. Subsection #5 as stated requires a demonstration of capacity. Vendors determine how best to address that criteria element.
2. In Deliverable #3 (and elsewhere), "recommendations, solutions, and artifacts" are mentioned. However, please verify our understanding that in Deliverable #3 you are looking for recommendations only and that there are no "solutions" required. Our understanding is that any "solutions" would be a part of Deliverable #4 - Option to Execute. 
Answer:  Please read Section VII, Subsection C. The Vendor will provide and present finalized strategies, tactical approaches, and a timeline to execute a cohesive and fully operational PMO with an optimized IT Governance Framework, enhanced automation and Enterprise Portfolio Management Process. The Vendor will present detailed recommendations on targets of opportunity for change, optimization, or development to define, manage, and deliver technology products and services consistently with necessary methods, processes, and tools to support and ensure IT goals are sustainable and successful. 
3. If the answer to 2 is that you are looking for solutions as well, can you be more specific as to which areas you think would require solutions (Optimized PMO, governance model, tools) since delivering "solutions" will be more extensive and costly than delivering "recommendations". 
Answer: See answer #2.
4. Do you expect anything from the vendor in the proposal for pricing, time, approach, and deliverable(s) for Deliverable #4? It appears that this is optional at this time and we won't know what the components of this deliverable are until the completion and AOC ISD feedback has been received for Deliverables #s 1-3.  
Answer:”Your interpretation is correct.  We do not expect anything from the vendor regarding Deliverable 4 until after Deliverables 1-3 have been completed.”
5. Appendix B - Pricing Matrix appears to only have a cover page. Is there a standard format that you would like for us to follow, and will you provide that to us? 
Answer: Revisit Appendix B at the website. All information is now provided.  
6. Your RFP mentions a time frame of mid-January 2009 - June 2009. Do you want the work to take the time defined due to the availability of your resources and their involvement, or would it be acceptable to you for us to work on an accelerated schedule if we are able to do so? 
Answer: The Vendor determines the project schedule best suited to meet the RFP requirements. AOC is committed to providing necessary staff support. 
 
7. The minimum qualifications section mentions someone on-site. Is it your intention that a person be on-site for the duration of the engagement or that we commit to having a person on-site as needed for the engagement? 
Answer: Finalized project schedules including resource requirements in support of requested services determine onsite frequency. 
8. Our understanding is that the scope of the project work is based on project management only, as generally defined in the PMBOK® Guide. Therefore, is the development lifecycle (eg, waterfall software development, iterative software development, etc.) out of scope? Are topics such as requirements gathering, application design, coding techniques, testing processes, etc. therefore also all out of scope?  
Answer: See RFP Section II and/or Section VI and Appendix C2.
 
9. If the answer to Question 8 is that project lifecycles are in scope, then is it development lifecycles only that are in scope or others as well (eg, infrastructure such as database upgrades, telecommunications upgrades, server upgrades, etc)?  
Answer: See answer 8.
10. Please verify that the scope of Portfolio Management within this RFP is for the AOC ISD only. This RFP addresses AOC ISD only, but we noticed a prior Portfolio Management procurement that mentioned all of JIS. We want to confirm our understanding that the scope for this RFP is AOC ISD only.  
Answer: See RFP Section V. under Professional Services. 
 
11. Page 15, D indicates this as RFP 09-04 but the proposal title page and header indicates this as RFP 09-05. Which number should we reference in our response? 
Answer: The number to use is RFP #09-05.
 
12. Will we be notified via email if the proposal is amended or should we check the website? When would be the last time an amendment is posted in order to allow time to modify and resubmit a proposal by 12/16? 
Answer:  We will try to notify all vendors via email regarding any possible amendments, although it is advisable to periodically check the procurement website. Please read XI, Subsection M, of the RFP regarding amendments to the RFP.  If AOC believes an amendment will cause major modification of a submittal, there is a possibility the RFP submittal date could be extended.   
 
13. Minimum criteria #5 asks for three years of audited financials. Is it acceptable to provide this confidential information secondarily if we are chosen as the winner of this RFP?  
Answer:  Financial stability is a scoring factor, so if audited financials are not provided a vendor could lose points.  Please read section N of the RFP regarding how to indicate in your proposal what information you want to be considered confidential and how that information will be treated by AOC.  
14. In Section K, Insurance, the RFP says -  “For Professional Liability Errors and Omissions coverage and Crime Coverage, Vendor shall: (i) continue such coverage for six (6) years beyond the expiration or termination of this contract, naming the AOC as an additional insured and providing the AOC with certificates of insurance on an annual basis…” At the current rate of approximately $3,000/year that a Vendor is currently paying for E&O Insurance, if the Vendor were to win the contract, this will incur an obligation to the Vendor of approximately $21,000. Is it possible that the AOC could provide a time reduction in the coverage beyond the expiration or termination of the contract?  
Answer:  While all terms of a contract are negotiable, these general terms and conditions are standard in Washington State for projects of this size.  The AOC’s primary concern in negotiating contracts is to protect public/taxpayers from potential monetary harm.
15.  On p. 18, Section K, Insurance, Note - the RFP says “(ii) within thirty (30) days of execution of this contract provide for the AOC’s benefit an irrevocable stand-by letter of credit, or other financial assurance acceptable to the AOC, in the amount of $1 million, during the initial and any subsequent terms of this contract and for six (6) years beyond the expiration or termination of this contract to pay for any premiums to continue such claims-made policies, or available tails, whichever is appropriate, at the AOC’s sole option, in the event the Vendor fails to do so. ” Regarding the Letter of Credit, our business manager says, “Typically the minimum cost is equal to 1% of the amount of the letter of credit, per annum. You would have to pay in bank fees $10,000 per year.”  He also says to me, “You will need to collateralize the letter of credit with your bank. This would have to be both business and personal collateral. You have a good credit standing, so you will more than likely qualify; however, you will have to potentially tie up $1M in assets. In today’s economic environment, the cost of money is increasing, credit is tightening up, and banks are failing. As a result, this requirement could make it very difficult for other small businesses to respond to the RFP.” If we understand this correctly, the cost of this requirement to us as a Vendor would be approximately $70,000 and it would involve other onerous terms as stated.  Is our understanding of the requirement correct, and, if so, would the AOC consider other terms that would enable a small company to respond to this RFP?  
Answer: See the answer to question 14.
16. P. 17, Section K, Insurance, the RFP says – “Crime Coverage with a deductible not to exceed $1 million, conditioned, and coverage of not less than $5 million single limit per occurrence and $10 million in the aggregate…” Our current insurance provider says that the cost of current coverage of $500,000, single limit, is $2,300 annually. For $5,000,000 it will be much higher. Of course, we may shop around and find a better price. May this requirement be reduced in amount or be eliminated?  
Answer: See the answer to question 14.
17. When will answers to the questions be provided? 
Answer: Questions will be addressed on a first come, first served basis and answers posted as soon as possible.
18. In p. 9, Minimum Qualifications, the RFP says in the section heading, “To be eligible for an award, Vendors must first meet the minimum qualifications listed below.” If a Vendor has existing staff that have been part of the Vendor’s organization for multiple years but the staff had such experience prior to joining the Vendor, may the prior experience of the Vendor’s staff be included in the Vendor’s qualifications?  
Answer: Vendors determine how best to present information that satisfies the stated criteria.
19. In p. 9, Minimum Qualifications, the RFP says in Section 3, “Proven ability to provide expert level consulting and guidance to deliver requested services.  Project Management, PMO Enterprise Build-out and Implementation, IT Governance, Portfolio Management.” If a Vendor has proven ability in three of the four categories, is the Vendor disqualified?  
Answer: See RFP Section IV.
20.  On p. 9, Minimum Qualifications of the RFP, Section 4 says, “Demonstrate the capacity to provide full time on-site staff to the planning and implementation of requested services for the full life of the project.” If a Vendor feels that part time staff, in addition to the full time staff, may be helpful in the delivery of services specified in the RFP, may these additional resources be included in the RFP response? Also, in what form does the AOC want this demonstration of capacity to be described?  Answer: Finalized project schedules, including resource requirements in support of requested services, will determine onsite frequency. 
21. Will the AOC provide a description of the management structure that the successful vendor will be working with and to whom the full time on-site staff will be reporting to?  
Answer: Yes.
22.  On p. 9, Minimum Qualifications - the RFP says in Section 5, “Evidence of financial stability by providing an overview on financial statements, along with audited financial statements for the last three (3) years that have been prepared by an independent third party.” If the Vendor has financial statements verified by a CPA hired by the Vendor, will this meet this requirement of the RFP?  
Answer: Yes.
23. Will all Vendors receiving the RFP notice receive a copy of all questions and answers?  
Answer: Yes.
24.  In Sections10 and 11 of Section A, Deliverable 1, the RFP says “The Vendor will provide a Project Plan that defines many of the individual plans that are needed to successfully complete the project. The Vendor must include a detailed work plan outlining all activities associated with this engagement from inception to conclusion. As part of delivering the work plan, there should also be a proposed schedule for extending and maturing the PMO, optimizing IT Governance, and developing a new Enterprise Portfolio Management Process.” Please clarify that the scope of work to be documented for Deliverable 1 includes only the work and time frames that pertain to Deliverables 1-4.
Answer: Yes.
25. On p. 11, Section D, Deliverable 4, the RFP says, “Expected work products/activities include, but are not limited to : Operational plan execution as outlined and approved…” Is it accurate to assume that the delivery of Deliverable 4, if optionally executed, is outside of the timeframe of this contract?  Answer: Yes.
26. On p. 20, Section R, Multiple Contracts, the RFP says, “The AOC reserves the right to enter contracts with more than one Vendor as a result of this RFP.” If a Vendor’s response includes all the scope of work of this RFP, how will the AOC split the scope of work between multiple vendors? Also, does this imply that a vendor may submit a response to only a portion of the RFP?  
Answer: See RFP Section VII, Subsection D.
27. On p. 17, Section K, Insurance, Number 2, the RFP says, “Business Automobile Liability (owned, hired, or non-owned) covering the risks of bodily injury (including death) and property damage, including coverage for contractual liability, with a limit of not less than $1 million per accident.” If the AOC allows a Vendor to utilize more than one staff, is this insurance required for all automobiles for all Vendor staff performing services for this contract?  
Answer: Yes.
28. On p. 17, Section K, the RFP says, “Industrial Insurance Coverage Prior to performing work under this contract, Vendor shall provide or purchase industrial insurance coverage for its employees, as may be required of an “employer” as defined in Title 51 RCW, and shall maintain full compliance with Title 51 RCW during the course of this Contract.” This insurance does not seem to be Worker’s Compensation Insurance since this is described on page 16. Could you elaborate on this insurance requirement?  
Answer: The booklet at the following Internet address provides information about this insurance http://www.lni.wa.gov/IPUB/101-002-000.pdf
29. Regarding Appendix B – Pricing Matrix:  No matrix was seen in the provided attachment. Could the AOC provide the required matrix?  
Answer: Revisit download page for RFP 09-05. Appendix B is available for download.
30. Appendix A, References says, “Vendor must provide a list of at least three (3) references for which they have delivered products and services of similar size and scope. Include the company names, mailing addresses, contact names, telephone numbers, dates of service, contract value, and a brief description of the similar services you provided for them in the past. Provide references for Professional Services. AOC may contact referenced clients during the evaluation process. Please include other court systems or Washington State agencies if possible.” Must a Vendor provide three references in which all services of Project Management, PMO Enterprise Build-out and Implementation, IT Governance, and Portfolio Management were provided for each reference?  Answer: The Vendor determines what references to use based on which are best suited to address the entirety of the stated criteria for products and services of similar size and scope.
31. Appendix D says, “RECORDS, DOCUMENTS, AND REPORTS:  The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence of accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of this contract.  These records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by personnel duly authorized by the AOC, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal officials so authorized by law, rule, regulation, or contract.  The Contractor will retain all books, records, documents, and other material relevant to this contract for six years after settlement, and make them available for inspection by persons authorized this provision.” Since this is a fixed-price contract, may this provision be removed?  
Answer: Please see the answer to question 14.
32. Appendix D says, “SAVINGS:  …the AOC may terminate the contract under the “Termination for Convenience” clause, without the five day notice requirement, subject to renegotiation under those new funding limitations and conditions.  Under this scenario, Contractor shall have the right to bill and will be paid for completed deliverables as set forth in the Statement of Work.” With only few major deliverables, if the AOC terminates the contract for convenience and the Vendor is has partially completed a deliverable, how will the Vendor be paid for the Vendor’s time already expended on incomplete deliverables?  This question also is relevant to Section B, Termination for Convenience, page 5 of Appendix D.  
Answer:  AOC can only pay for completed deliverables. If uncompleted deliverables can be used and implemented by AOC, a price for the incomplete deliverable could be negotiated. However, AOC would not consider this as a contractual obligation.
33.  Is the expectation of the sponsor that Deliverable "D" will be fully implemented by the estimated contract end date of 6/30/09? 
Answer: No.
34.  Were there Vendors that helped WA State Courts AOC set up the existing PMO? What are the names of these Vendors? Are these Vendors eligible to bid on this RFP?
Answer: No vendors have helped setup the existing PMO. 
 
35.  RFP page 5, paragraph 5, bullet indicates “ The targeted components necessary to continue the expansion and maturity of ISD’s project management capabilities includes but is not limited to…”  As this is a fixed price contract, please further define “includes but is not limited to” in order for Vendors to understand the full project scope.
Answer: See RFP Section VI and Section XII (Appendix C2)
36. RFP page 16, item J – Contract indicates, “After acceptance of Deliverable #3, the AOC will make a final determination on the course(s) of action, which may include proceeding with Deliverable #4 as outlined in Section VII. AOC reserves the right to continue the engagement with the contracted Professional Services provider and/or elect to procure another services provider(s).” Deliverable Acceptance Criteria is also provided in RFP Section VIII.  Please define deliverable review and approval process and duration.
Answer:  See RFP Section VIII.
37.  Page 4, "Proposal Due Date" implies that proposals are to be mailed or hand delivered.  This seems to contradict page 15, section XI.C. and page 20, section T. which states that they may be emailed.  Will AOC please clarify acceptable means of delivery?

Answer: As stated, Vendors assume the risk of the method of dispatch chosen. However, vendors must minimally submit their proposals electronically. E-mail submissions are accepted. 

38.  Can AOC please provide an organization chart, or a description of the current PMO structure within ISD?  We would like to understand the reporting relationships, size, roles and resources deployed (employees, contractors, etc), within the ISD PMO.

Answer: The AOC will provide additional information as necessary to the apparently successful vendor. 

39. How large is ISD?  How many employees are there and into what ISD units and roles do they fall?  

Answer: Total staff complement of 75+ for FTE’s and over 100+ overall through vendor staff augmentation.

40. Was the 2007 initiate to establish a centralized PMO completed solely with internal ISD and AOC, or did you have outside consultants assisting?  If outside consultants were also used, can you please tell us who assisted AOC?  

Answer: Early initiation activities to establish a centralized PMO was completed by AOC staff. 

41. Page 7, section D, states that the ISD PMO provides customers (internal & external) with project management information and resources.  Can you please clarify the groups/individuals who are customers of the PMO, including the internal and external customers?  Also, can you clarify what resources the PMO provides to its customers (e.g., project managers, tools, etc).  

Answer: Read RFP Section II and III for general overview on customer support

Answer: Read Appendix C5 for a detail breakdown on customer profiles supported.

Answer: Resources provided directly by the PMO includes project management staff (PM’s).

Answer: See Appendix C2 for an overview on the level of support to be delivered by the PMO to its customers and stakeholders.

42. Page 16, section I, Acceptance of RFP Terms, provides a means for bidders to submit requested variations to the terms of the RFP.  Can AOC please clarify, does this provision also extend to the Terms & Conditions, to allow for bidders to submit requested changes to the General Terms and Conditions, or to specify terms and conditions bidders request to be negotiable?

Answer: Yes.

43. Page 25, section B, General Terms and Conditions, also refers to "Specific Terms and Conditions."  AOC has provided the General Terms and Conditions as Appendix D to the RFP.  Will AOC also please provide and example of the "Specific Terms and Conditions?"

Answer:  The specific terms and conditions will be the terms of the contract negotiated with the successful vendor:  For example, Period of Performance, Compensation, and Statement of Work.

44. Are there other key initiatives being undertaken by ISD related to JIS Governance, IT Service Delivery or ISD operation in general, which are running concurrently with the PMO initiative?  If so, can AOC provide a brief overview of these initiatives, so that we can consider any influence these project may have on the PMO initiate and any required points of coordination with these other initiatives.  

Answer: The AOC is engaged in multiple initiatives as part of continuing work to support our customers and manage an existing portfolio. One initiative with potential for coordination includes a procurement centered on Business Planning and Enterprise IT Strategy Optimization.  

45. AOC recently awarded a JIS Business Planning and Strategy contract to Ernst & Young. Can you describe the relationship between this PMO opportunity and the Business Planning & Strategy project? What is your vision as to how the successful PMO vendor will interface with the Ernst & Young team? 

Answer: The JIS Business Planning and Strategy Engagement is focused on the justification of activities from a business and strategy perspective vs. the PMO initiative which provides part of the operational enablement once the business and strategy are addressed fully. 

Answer: Vendors working on AOC initiatives will be expected to work collaboratively to satisfy AOC business interests where appropriate. 

46. Can you provide details on the amount budgeted for the delivery of the work described in the RFP? Do you anticipate this budget being altered due to the project budget shortfall within the State of Washington?

Answer: There are no budgetary constraints on this initiative.

47.  Appendix C4 – JISC portfolio policy mandates a biennial strategic plan for the JIS.  Is this represented with Appendix C3 - JIS Roadmap Status Update (Final - 032406)?  If so, is there an update for 2008?  If not, can a link to the strategic plan document be provided?  
 Answer: Updated information will be provided as necessary to the apparently successful vendor.
48.  Can you provide more information about the current PMO? For example: Describe the PMO Organizational Structure. Identify the number of resources in each role. 
Answer: Specific details will be provided as necessary to the apparently successful vendor. 
49.  What activities does the PMO support? (e.g., PM services – process definition/training/coaching, delivery oversight -- project delivery monitoring/management, Project Resource Management--HR responsibility for PM's and potentially other resources).

Answer: See RFP Section II, III, and XII Appendix C2 for an overview on what the PMO is responsible for. 
50.  What aspects of the PMO are not currently working as desired?

Answer: Specific details will be provided as necessary to the apparently successful vendor. 

51.  Please characterize the typical background, experience level of your Project Managers. 

Answer: Mixed experience from mid level to senior practitioner. 
52.  Has there been any formalized review of current PMO capability and organizational needs?  If so, are these results available?

Answer: Yes. 

53.  There is reference to a 'PMO Enterprise Build out and Implementation' requirement. Please describe the expectations in this area more fully. 

Answer: Please see RFP Section XII Appendix C2 for an overview on where current activities reside and what is expected to fully address the noted goals of the strategy framework.

54.  Within Table 1 of Section III, ISD references Project Server as not being fully deployed, can you elaborate? Can you elaborate on the following Project Server questions?    

a. What functionality has been implemented?  

Answer: None.  

b. What functionality is still scheduled for implementation? 

Answer: Integrated resource management with limited capabilities to manage and oversee resources across the enterprise. 

c.  What functionality is targeted, but not scheduled? 

Answer: TBD.   

d. What users have access? 

Answer: ISD Project Staff (PM, BA, Tech)   

e.    What users are scheduled to have access? 

Answer: TBD.   

f.    What users are targeted for access, but not scheduled? 

Answer: TBD.   

g.   Any integration implemented, scheduled or planned?  If so, what?

Answer: TBD.  Current focus is just on MS Project Server stand alone capabilities. Near and long term strategy includes full integration with entire PMO Technology Suite including SharePoint. 

 

